
PUBLIC NOTICE 
 

 AUMSVILLE PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 
Thursday, May 6, 2021 – 6:00 PM 

 

Aumsville Community Center, 555 Main Street, Aumsville, OR via ZOOM 

 

AGENDA 
 

CALL TO ORDER: 6:00 pm 
 

VISITORS: NONE  
 
PUBLIC HEARING:   SDR 2021-02  995 Olney St
1. Open Public Hearing 
2. Declaration of Interests 
3. Preliminary Matters  
4. Opening Statement 
5. Staff Report 
6. Applicant Testimony  
7. Proponent(s) Testimony* 
8. Opponent(s) Testimony* 
9. Governmental Agencies 

 
10. General Testimony 
11. Questions from the Public** 
12. Questions from the Commission 
13. Applicant Summary 
14. Staff Summary 
15. Close or Continue the Hearing 
16. Deliberation 
17. Decision

PLANNING COMMISSION OPTIONS  
A. Make a motion to adopt the staff report and approve the requested Site Development Review (SDR 21-

02), subject to the conditions of approval as set forth in the staff report.  
B. Make a motion to adopt the staff report and approve the requested Site Development Review (SDR 21-

02), with findings and conditions of approval as modified to reflect the changes made by the Planning 
Commission.  

C. Make a motion to deny the requested Site Development Review (SDR 21-02)  
D. Make a motion to continue the public hearing to a date and time certain and state the additional 

information that is needed to allow for a future decision. 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES: March 18, 2021 

Sample Motion: I make a motion to approve the March 18, 2021 Planning Commission Minutes as 
presented. 

 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS: NONE 
 

NEW BUSINESS: 
 

CORRESPONDENCE: NONE   
 

OTHER BUSINESS:  WORK SESSION DISCUSSION.  
 

FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS: TBD 
 

NEXT MEETING: to be determined. 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 

*PUBLIC COMMENT: Due to the COVID-19 Virus, Commission will Accept Public Comment by Email to 
rcrowther@aumsville.us or drop in the City Hall payment drop box/lobby by noon on May 6, 2021. 

**VISITORS: The meeting will be conducted via video conference call. For information about how to attend 
the meeting, please email rcrowther@aumsville.us to request instructions. 

 

rcrowther@aumsville.us%20
mailto:crogers@aumsville.us


APC AGENDA – 3/18/21 2  

The City of Aumsville does not, and shall not, discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion (creed), gender, gender 
expression, age, national origin (ancestry), disability, marital status, sexual orientation, or military status, in any of its 
activities or operations. 
 
Anyone wishing to speak on an agenda item should ask to be recognized by the Chair at the beginning of that agenda 
item. The meeting location is accessible to persons with disabilities. A request for an interpreter for the hearing 
impaired, or for other accommodations for persons with disabilities should be made at least 48 hours prior to the 
meeting. Please call (503)749-2030 and leave a message or Oregon Relay service for TDD at (800) 735-2900. 



DRAFT 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

AUMSVILLE PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES 
  

Thursday, March 18, 2021 
 

The meeting was called to order at 6:18 PM via Zoom by Chair Carrie Murphy. 
Commissioners also present were Jennifer Molan, Matthew Curran, Chris Chytka (6:24 PM), 
and Tom Youmans. Commissioners absent were none. Staff present was City Administrator 
Ron Harding (CA Harding) and Office Assistant Ryanne Crowther (OA Crowther) via Zoom. 
There were 0 members from the public present.  
 
CA Harding gave an overview of recent development in the area.  
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES: January 21, 2021 
Commissioner Molan moved to approve the minutes from the January 21, 2021 meeting. 
Commissioner Curran seconded the motion. Voting in favor were Commissioners Murphy, 
Curran, Molan, Youmans, and Chytka. The motion passed unanimously. 

 
PUBLIC HEARING: Aumsville Development Code -  Proposed Revisions

 
Staff Report: Staff report was given by CA Harding. Planning Commission and staff 
went through the proposed redline revisions.  

 
After deliberation, including discussion, Commissioner Molan made a motion to 
recommend approval to City Council of the Development Ordinance revisions with 
modifications as discussed. Commissioner Chytka seconded the motion. Voting in favor 
were Chair Murphy and Commissioners Curran, Molan, Youmans, and Chytka. The 
motion passed unanimously.  
 
WORK SESSION: Postponed for next meeting.  
 
 
NEXT MEETING:  TBD April 2021 – Community Center 555 Main Street, Aumsville, 
Oregon 97325.  
 
ADJOURNMENT: 7:44 PM without objection. 
 
 
 
             
                   Planning Chair 
 
 

 
 
595 Main St. Aumsville, Oregon 97325 

(503) 749-2030TTY 711Fax (503) 749-1852 

www.aumsville.us  
 

http://www.aumsville.us/


STAFF REPORT 

 

HEARING DATE: May 6, 2021 

REPORT DATE: April 29, 2021 

FILE NUMBER: SDR 2021-02 

APPLICANT/OWNER: Tom Youmans; 995 Olney St, Aumsville, OR 97325  

REQUEST:  Proposal is for Site Development Review approval of two additional mini-
storage buildings with associated parking, landscaping, and site 
improvements for Aumsville Mini-Storage.  

 
LOCATION:  The subject property is located on the north side of Olney Street, east of 

Aumsville Hwy.  
Address: 995 Olney Street 

   Assessor’s Map: 082W25B001600 
 
SIZE:   3.44 Acre 
 
DESIGNATION:              Comprehensive Plan Map: Industrial 
                                         Zoning: Industrial 
 
ADJACENT ZONING: North:  Industrial 
 South:  Residential Multi-family 
 East:  Public 
 West:  Industrial 
 
CRITERIA: Aumsville Development Ordinance (ADO):  
   Section 08.00  Industrial  

Section 12.00  Administrative Procedures  
Section 18.00   Off-Street Parking and Loading  
Section 19.00   Signs  
Section 21.00  Site Development Review  
Section 22.00   Supplementary Zone Regulations  
Section 23.00   Landscaping Design 

 
 
 
  



I.  CRITERIA AND FINDINGS – CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL  
 

SITE DEVELOPMENT REVIEW 
 

Section 21.00 of the Aumsville Development Code establishes the purpose, applicability, and 
requirements for a Site Development Review. Specific Site Development Review decision 
criteria are found in Section 21.06. The review authority shall make written findings with 
respect to all of the following criteria when approving, approving with conditions, or 
denying an application:  

21.05(A)The application is complete, as determined in accordance with Section 12.02 and 
Section 21.05.   

 
 Findings: The applicant submitted the necessary application and the required fees. Staff 

finds this criterion is met.  

21.05(B)The application complies with all of the applicable provisions of the underlying land use 
zone, including: building and yard side and rear setbacks, lot area and dimensions, lot coverage, 
and other special standards as may be required for certain land uses. 

  
Findings:  
Land use: The use of the site falls under Section 8.00 (Industrial-I Zone) 

  
 (E) Other Uses 
Retail and Wholesale Trade: 
8.  Mini-storage warehouses available to the public, including indoor or outdoor 
 recreational vehicle storage. 
 
 Findings: The applicant is a proposing two additional storage buildings. The primary 

use is mini-storage with associated office and warehouse storage for company vehicles 
and equipment. This is a permitted use in this zone. Staff finds this criterion is met. 

 
 8.03 Industrial Performance Standards:  The discharge of solids, liquids, or gases which are 

detrimental to the public health, safety, and welfare causing injury to human, plant, or 
animal life or to property is prohibited in this industrial zone. In an I zone no land or 
structure shall be used or occupied unless therein continuing compliance with the following 
standards:  

  (A) Heat, glare, and light: 1. All operations and facilities producing heat, glare, or 
light, including exterior lighting, shall be so directed or shielded by walls, fences, 
evergreen plantings, that such heat, glare, or light is not reflected onto adjacent 
properties or streets. 

  Findings: Lighting on the outside of the building will be directed at parking lots as to 
minimize any glare onto adjacent properties. 

   (B) Noise: 1. No noise or sound in an I zone shall be of a nature which will constitute a 
nuisance as documented by the chief of police.  



  Findings: The proposed use will not create out of the ordinary noise.  This criterion 
is not applicable. 

  (C) Sewage: 1. No categorical wastewater discharges are allowed. Adequate 
provisions shall be in place for the disposal of sewage and waste materials and such 
provisions shall meet the requirements of the city of Aumsville sewage disposal 
system.  

  Findings: The proposed use does not have anticipated discharge. This criterion is 
not applicable. 
(D) Vibration: 1. No vibration other than that caused by highway vehicles and trains 
shall be permitted which is discernible without instruments at or beyond the 
property line for the use concerned.  

   Findings: The proposed use will not create out of the ordinary noise. This criterion 
is not applicable. 

 8.04 Minimum Lot Area:  None.  
 Findings: No minimum lot area is required in the Industrial Zone. Staff finds this criterion 

is met.   
 8.05 Minimum Lot Width:  None.  
 Findings: No minimum lot area is required in the Industrial Zone. Staff finds this criterion 

is met.   
 8.06 Maximum Lot Coverage:  None.  
 Findings: No minimum lot area is required in the Industrial Zone. Staff finds this criterion 

is met.   
 8.07 Maximum Height of Structure:  70 feet.  
 Findings: The elevations submitted as a part of this application indicate the proposed to 

be 9 feet in height from grade to base of roof line. Staff finds this criterion is met. 
 8.08 Yard Requirements:  None.  
 Findings: No minimum lot area is required in the Industrial Zone. Staff finds this criterion 

is met. 
 8.09 Parking and Loading:  See the Parking and Loading section of this ordinance.  
 Findings: Compliance with the parking provisions below 

21.06(C) Characteristics of adjoining and surrounding uses 
 Findings: The subject site is located at the north side of Olney Street, east of Aumsville 

Hwy in the Industrial Zone. It is adjacent to Industrial use to the north and west. The 
property to the south is zoned Residential Multi-Family. Adjacent on the east side is Public 
use. The proposed use is additional mini-storage and is required screening and buffering 
from other uses. See below, Landscape ADO 23.05, Screening and Buffering.    

21.06(D) The application complies with the supplementary zone regulations contained in Sections 
18.00, 19.00, and 22.00.  

  The applicable provisions in each section are noted as follows: 
  Findings: The applicable provisions in each section are noted as follows:  

 Section 18.00 (Parking and Loading) Findings: Compliance with the parking 
provisions below.  

 Section 19.00 (Signs) Findings: The applicant is not proposing any additional signs at 
this time. Staff finds that this criterion is not applicable at this time.   



 Section 22.00 (Supplementary Zone Regulations) Findings: Compliance with the 
Supplementary Zone Regulations below.   

21.06(E) Conditions required as part of a land division (Section 20.00), conditional uses (Section 
14.00), or other approval shall be met. 

 Findings: No other approval relevant to the subject site has been identified. Staff finds this 
criterion is met.  

21.06(F)Provision for adequate noise and/or visual buffering from non-compatible uses.  
 Findings: The proposal for an Industrial use on the subject site, located in the Industrial 

Zone is compatible with the surrounding uses, except for the south Multi-Family use. 
Public use to the east is an access road and does not require screening. Existing screening 
at the site on the north side of Olney meets the ADO 23.00 Landscaping Design as 
described below. Staff finds this criterion is met.  

21.06(G)Drainage and erosion control needs. 
 Findings: Any grading or improvements will require compliance with City Public Works 

standards regarding storm drainage. This is listed as a condition of approval. Staff finds 
this criterion can be met as conditioned. 

21.06(H)Public health factors.   
 Findings: It is not anticipated that the proposed use of the subject property will have a 

negative impact on the public health. Staff finds this criterion is met.  
21.06(I)Problems that may arise due to development within potential hazard area.   
 Findings: The subject site is not located within a potential hazard area. Staff finds this 

criterion is not applicable. 
21.06(J)Retention of existing natural features on site.   
 Findings: No natural features requiring retention have been identified on the subject site. 

Staff finds this criterion is not applicable.  
 

Section 18.00, Off-Street Parking and Loading 
ADO 18.01 requires Off-street vehicular parking areas, off-street loading areas, and bicycle 
parking facilities shall be provided and maintained: (A) For any new building or structure 
erected.  

  
18.03 (B) Mixed Uses. If more than one type of land use occupies a single structure or parcel 
of land, the total requirements for off-street automobile parking shall be the sum of the 
requirements for all uses, unless it can be shown that the peak parking demands are 
actually less (e.g., the uses operate on different days or at different times).  

  
Section 18.05(M) Bank; office buildings; medical and dental clinic, requires 1 space per 300 
sq. ft. of gross floor area, plus one space per 2 employees. Bicycle spaces required is 1.   

  
Section 18.05(R), Warehousing and storage distribution terminals; requires 1 space per 
3000 square feet plus 1 space per employee during the largest shift.  

 
Findings: Under 18.05 parking requirement is to accommodate the highest use of any 
activity or a sum of all activities in mixed use buildings. 18.05 (R) The square footage of 
the buildings used for storage is approximately 55,000 square feet: 1 space is required for 
5000 square footage. This would require 16 spaces. 18.05 (M) Office space is 



approximately 1300 square feet, 1 space is requiring for 300 square feet plus 1 space per 
two employees. The applicant provided 5 employees are there during peak hours. This 
requires 7 spaces. The applicant has provided 12 marked parking spaces. Due to the 
nature of the business of mini-storage, most of the customer activity is loading/unloading 
on the hardscape throughout the entire site, essentially treating the entire paved surfaces 
as a parking/loading zone. 18.011 Bicycle parking for the office portion is applicable under 
18.05(M) and 18.05 (R), requiring 5 bicycle spaces. Staff finds this criterion is to be met as 
conditioned below.  

  
18.06 Off-Street Loading Requirements:  Off-street loading spaces for commercial and 
industrial buildings shall require a minimum loading space size of 10 feet wide, 25 feet long, 
and 14 feet high, in the following manner:  
3. Over 50,000 square feet of gross floor area 750 square feet 
 
Findings: The site plan provided by the applicant details adequate space for the loading 
zone. Staff finds this criterion is met.   

 
Section 22.00, Supplementary Zone Regulations  
22.01 Clear Vision Area:  
(A) A clear vision area shall be maintained on corner lots at the intersection of public or private 
streets, and at the intersection of any street with an alley or driveway.  
(B) A clear vision area is a triangular area, two sides of which are lot lines starting from the corner at 
the intersection and measured for a distance of 20 feet. In the case of driveways, the 20 feet shall 
be measured from the intersection of the property line with the centerline of the driveway, or the 
centerline for two-way drives. Where lot lines or intersections have rounded corners, the lines shall 
be extended in a straight line to a point of intersection (making a corner) and so measured. The 
third side of the triangle shall be a line connecting the non-intersecting ends of the other two lines. 
(See Illustrations following Section 27).  
(C) Clear vision shall also include all areas adjacent to a street, 10 feet from the face of the curb, 
regardless of property line.  
(D) A clear vision area shall contain no planting, sight-obscuring fence wall, hedge, structure, vehicle 
parking, or any temporary or permanent obstruction exceeding  
36 inches measured from the adjacent curb elevations or established street grade if no curb exists. 
Trees may be located in this area, provided all branches and foliage are removed up to a height of 8 
feet above the ground. The vision clearance area may be increased by the Council, Planning 
Commission, or Administrative Official upon finding that more sight distance is required for safety 
reasons. (i.e., due to traffic speeds, roadway alignment, etc.)  
 
Findings: The site is not on a corner lot. The preliminary site plan details adequate clear vision 
areas. No sight-obscuring vegetation or structure are proposed as part of this application in the 
clear vision area. Staff finds this criterion to be met.  
 
Changes to the fence are not proposed as a part of this application. Residential accessory 
structures are not proposed as a part of this application. Yard exceptions are not proposed as a 
part of this application. The subject site is not located in a flood hazard area. The proposed 



development is not expected to exceed the threshold of 25 or more peak-hour trips or 250 or 
more daily trips, and, therefore, the applicant is not required to submit a Traffic Impact Analysis.   
 

Section 23.00, Landscaping Design 
23.03 Minimum Area Requirements.   

(A) The following area requirements shall be the minimum areas devoted to landscaping as 
listed below:  

2. Industrial Developments.  A minimum of 10 percent of the gross land area shall be 
devoted to landscaping in industrial developments.  

 
Findings: The site plan provided by the applicant provides only existing 1% landscaped 
area. Staff finds this criterion to be met as conditioned.  

  
23.05 Screening and Buffering: 

 (A) Screening shall be used to eliminate or reduce the visual impacts of the following uses 
and are two separate issues for the purpose of meeting the requirements:  
 1. Commercial and industrial uses when abutting residential uses.  
 
Findings: The preliminary site plan does not show an adequate landscape buffer on the 
street frontage of Olney Street across from Residential Multi-family use. The site plan 
does not adequately provide detail to meet requirements in Sections 23.05 through 23.09. 
Staff finds this criterion is to be met as conditioned below.   

 
II. CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 
 
General 
1.  Site development review approval shall be effective for a period of two (2) years from 

the date of approval.   
2.  Site development review approval shall be voided immediately if development on the 

site is a departure from the approved plan or development use.   
3.  If required site improvements cannot be completed before the issuance of an 

occupancy permit, a performance bond or other guarantee acceptable to the city 
attorney may be required.   

4.  Development shall not commence until the applicant has received all of the appropriate 
land use and development approvals.  

5.  Construction of public improvements shall not commence until the city has approved all 
required public improvement plans.   

6.  Compliance with the Conditions of Approval shall be the sole responsibility of the 
applicant.   

  
Private Utilities   
7.  In accordance with the City’s Design Standards, all private utilities must be located 

underground.  
  
  



Parking   
8.  The developer shall provide 5 bicycle parking spaces, meeting the requirements for 

bicycle parking as outlined in Section 18.11 of the Aumsville Development Code.  
9.  Parking or storage of vehicles must meet city parking standards, including Section 18.08.   
  
Landscaping  
10. Prior to the issuance of any building permit or the construction of any proposed 

improvements to the site, a detailed landscaping plan, showing specific species of plant, 
size and placement and screening and buffering requirements, following provisions in 
ADO Sections 23.03 through 23.09, shall be submitted to and approved by the City 
Administrator.   
OR  
Prior to the issuance of any building permit or the construction of any proposed 
improvements to the site, execute an in lieu of landscaping fee agreement to be paid to 
the city in accordance with ADO 23.01 and 23.10, as determined by the City 
Administrator. 
 

Grading and Storm Drainage 
11. Any grading or improvements will require compliance with City Public Works standards 

regarding storm drainage.  
 
III. PLANNING COMMISSION OPTIONS  
 

A. Make a motion to adopt the staff report and approve the requested Site Development 
Review (SDR 21-02), subject to the conditions of approval as set forth in the staff report.  
 

B. Make a motion to adopt the staff report and approve the requested Site Development 
Review (SDR 21-02), with findings and conditions of approval as modified to reflect the 
changes made by the Planning Commission.  
 
Note: The Commissioner making the motion needs to state the reasons for the modifications 
and any revised conditions of approval.  
 

C. Make a motion to deny the requested Site Development Review (SDR 21-02)  
 
Note: The Commissioner making the motion needs to state the reasons for the denial.  
 

D. Make a motion to continue the public hearing to a date and time certain and state the 
additional information that is needed to allow for a future decision. 


























